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PPROGEEDI-NGS (5:34 p.m)

MR. PAULSON: [I'Ill call the neeting to
order. It's 5:34. Wuld the clerk call the role,
pl ease. O you call, | guess?

M5. LANG [|'mjust going to say your

names. M chael Paul son.

MR, PAULSON: Present.

M5. LANG  Lance Mueller.

MR. MJELLER: Present.

M5. LANG  Carl os Pastrana.

MR. PASTRANA: Present.

MR. PAULSON: And I'll be acting chair

for this neeting. Has staff provided public
noti ce?

M5. LANG Yes, it was posted and
publ i shed according to |local and state | aw
requi renents.

MR. PAULSON:. Okay. Item No. 4, do we
have a notion to approve the August 9th, 2016
meeting mnutes as delivered in your packets?

MR. MUJELLER  So noved.

MR. PASTRANA: Second.

MR. PAULSON: All in favor?

(Vote taken.)

MR. PAULSON:. Okay. Mnutes are
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approved. Before we have the attorney reviewthe
standards, | will be acting chair today, so let ne
just wal k through our process as we do it.

For each one of these we will have the --
This is a quasi judicial sort of proceeding. In
other words, we do create a record, we're not
going to type it up, we're not going to create a
transcript unless there's sone further court
proceedi ng or unusual circunstance that requires
us to actually type it up. But we do have a court
reporter here today who will transcribe all of the
t esti nony.

And what we'll basically do is for each
itemstaff will present the outline of facts, the
initial application for a building permt,
descri be the circunstances, describe the appeal,
and give the staff position, which is basically in
the staff nmeno. The nenbers of the board wll
have a chan -- an opportunity to ask staff any
clarifying questions they m ght have.

Then each of the applicants will have an
opportunity to testify. You'll be sworn under
oath, and you can give the relevant facts as you
see themto support your appeal. This is pretty

informal. W aren't -- There's not going to be
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any cross-examnation or anything |ike that, but
t he board nenbers will have an opportunity to ask
you questions to clarify to make sure we
under st and exactly what the circunstances are.

We'll ask if there's any nenber of the
public who wants to nake a statenent on that
particul ar application. W'Il|l close the hearing
portion of it.

And then following the rules as set forth
by the Village Attorney in the Village Code and in
W sconsin Statutes, the nenbers of the board wll
di scuss the issue and will reach a determ nation
whet her your variance is going to be granted or
not. And we'll do it right here out in the open,

no qui et sessions or behind-the-scenes di scussion

or any of that, it will all be out front for you
to hear. And then so you'll have a decision right
away.

It will be followed up with staff by sone

witten docunentation or whatever, whether it's
granted or denied, so you'll have sonmething in
witing as well within a few days. But you'l

have an oral determnation. And if there are sone
mechani cs to be worked out, we'll probably work

t hose out right here as to what the next step
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ought to be.

That's the way the proceeding wll go.
W'l take -- Since everybody is here, we'll take
themin the order that they are on the agenda.

But before we get to that, M. Bayer.

MR. BAYER. kay. The first application,
Board of Appeals Application that's on the agenda
tonight is a request for a variance. And just for
t he benefit of everyone that's here, | know that
t he Board of Appeals nenbers are very famliar
with the standards, but | want to make sure that
ever ybody does.

A request for a variance is essentially
an adm ssion that yes, the condition on our
property violates the code, the buil ding code;
however, we're asking based upon speci al
ci rcunstance or special conditions on our property
that you grant us a -- nake a special exception
for us.

And under 535, or the Village code, which
Is the zoning regul ations, the Board of Appeals
specifically has been granted the power to give
such variances as will not be contrary to the
public interest. And it says, where, owing to

special conditions, a literal enforcenent of the
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buil ding code will result in either a practical
difficulty or sonme form of unnecessary hardship.

So that will basically be the focus of
t he requests for the variance tonight, the
board -- or excuse ne, the Board of Appeals is
going to be focusing on those criteria.

Now, under Section 535-58 there are sone
specific findings that nust be made and pl aced
into the mnutes in the record before a variance
can be granted. And those findings that have to
be made by the Board of Appeals are that there's
an exceptional circunstance related to the
property or the structure that generally does not
apply to other properties. |In other words, we're
not creating a new rule for everybody, this is
I ndeed an exception to the rule.

And al so the second thing that nust be
found and recorded in the -- in the mnutes is the
absence of detrinent. In other words, the Board
of Appeals has to find that granting this variance
to this particular property won't be a detri nent
to the surroundi ng property, either on the left or
the right, or the nei ghborhood or the community as
a whole in Shorewood. So those are the two

findings that need to be nmde.
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And for the benefit of everybody, if
you' re looking along, if you have a copy of the
code here, those are Sections 535-55, which
outlines the powers of the -- of the Board of
Appeal s, and al so 535-58, which includes the
specific findings that nust be made in order to
grant a vari ance.

So the testinmony that will be taken
toni ght and the questions that will be asked w ||
all be going towards determ ni ng whether there is
i ndeed absence of a detrinent and excepti onal
circunstances that woul d support awardi ng t he
variance in this particul ar case.

MR. PAULSON: Thank you. GCkay. The next
itemon the agenda is Item No. 6, the Public
Hearing in the Appeal of the building inspector
order to reduce the fence height within the front
yard zoni ng setback at residential property 2500
East Aive. WII| staff please present this
matter.

M5. LANG Technically |I'm supposed to
be sworn in. Can you swear ne in?

MR. BAYER: Sure. Do we have the --

M5. LANG Here, just read that. |'m

going to raise ny right hand.
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ERI CKA LANG being first duly sworn,
testified as foll ows:

M5. LANG So the Village received a
Board of Appeals Application on August 23rd, 2016
fromthe property owners, M. and Ms. Tom Gough
G o-u-g-h, that live at -- reside at the property
2500 East Aive. They are appealing the
correction notice fromthe building inspector, as
t he agenda said, to reduce the fence height to 4
feet. R ght nowit's slightly above 5 feet.

|'"m actually going to read verbatimthe
codes that ny nmeno says so it's accurate in the
record. So two codes apply here. Per Buil ding
Code 225-8(2), Al fences erected or constructed
in the front setback area as established under the
provi si ons of Zoni ng Code 535-19E(5) of the
Village Code shall be limted to a height of no
nmore than 4 feet; provided, however, that on
corner |ots, where adjacent to a public wal k or
street, all fences erected or constructed to a
hei ght of nore than 4 feet shall conformto the
bui | di ng set back provisions of that section | just
sai d.

So the property is zoned R-6, which is a

one- and two-famly zoning district. And so the



© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N N N N N T o i e e
o A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ w N -+ O

10

front zoning setback for that zoning district is
25 feet or the average of the existing setbacks on
the side of the street where the property is

| ocat ed, between the two cl osest intersection
streets, whichever is greater.

l'"mgoing to reference -- | gave you an
aerial photo of the property, and | drew a yell ow
line across the front yard. So this is a corner
property for the record. And so that shows you
what our code and what staff interprets of where
the front yard's boundary is.

The house is set back 32 feet fromthe
front yard property boundary. The fence is
actually less than 16 feet fromthe front yard
boundary. And since it's 25 feet or ahead of that
into the front yard, it nust conformto that
zoni ng section | just referenced of 4 feet in
hei ght .

My neno does say the specific that the
fence height does vary 5 feet 1 inches, to 5 feet
7 inches.

And there's a survey in your packet
that actually shows a yellow line. It is not
accurately drawn, for the record, but the fence

portion that applies, not just the horizontal
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section, it's also the waparound too, that would
be 9 feet back to be at that 25 feet back from
the front yard boundary, if that makes sense.

| think that's all the facts | have

surrounding this item And then [ots of pictures.

You can see it does |l ook |like a nice fence.
That's it.

MR. PAULSON: Do you have any questions?
| have a couple just for clarifying. Based on
your -- the staff position that this is front
yard, so that the fence nust be back at | east 25
feet?

M5. LANG  Correct.

MR PAULSON: But if | --

M5. LANG You know, that does sound |ike

a bit of a contradiction because the yellow |ine
is at the house line, which is traditionally what
the front yard is, but then it throws in this
average of blocks if it's hard to determne. So
there's only another house on the block, if | am
correct, that -- which is nmuch farther ahead and
closer to the sidewal k.

When staff received it, we felt that the
application, we were verbally discussing it with

the contractor, we felt that it nmet the spirit of

11
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t he code, that being 25 feet back would suffice to
meet the zoning requirenents. So it's up to you

MR. PAULSON: As opposed to the average
bet ween this property of 2500 (sic) feet, which is
sonething li ke 31 feet back, and the nei ghboring
house, which is, if I'"mjust eyeballing --

M5. LANG  Probably 25 --

MR. PAULSON:. -- is sonething |ike 10 or
12 feet back, the front edge of that nei ghboring
house.

M5. LANG You're right, it does appear
t hat way because the current fence of this
applicant is 16 feet back fromthe property
boundary.

MR. PAULSON: So it's --
LANG That's --

o

MR. PAULSON: -- giving it the benefit of
t he doubt --

M5. LANG R ght.

MR. PAULSON: -- it would be, let's say,
15 feet. |It's probably actually less, but if it's
15 feet and the house is 31 feet, the average of
that would still be 25-1/2. So using that
average, the fence as built 16 feet is still

closer to the street than the setback ordi nance

12
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requires; is that correct, in staff view?

M5. LANG |I'd have to actually draw sone
nunbers here. | didn't take it to that extent of
anal ysi s, because | did not neasure the house next
door. Since the code says 25 feet or average, and

| knew t he house was set back 32 feet, and the

fence is at 16 feet, | felt it had to neet that 25
feet. | hope I'mnot speaking in circles. So
I'm - -

MR PAULSON: Well, what I'mtrying to
establish here is which is -- which is greater,
25 feet or the average?
M5. LANG R ght.
MR, PAULSON: And it al nost | ooks Iike
if we assune it's -- if we assune that the
nei ghbori ng house is 16 feet, yeah, the average is
still going to be nore than 25 feet, between 31 --
M5. LANG The few -- Let's just assum --
MR, PAULSON: No, | take that back.
M5. LANG You know, | should have -- |
shoul d have neasured the neighbor's house. |
apol ogi ze. But if you're saying it's 10 feet, and
this is 32 feet, the average would be 21 feet.
MR PAULSON: 21 feet.
M5. LANG R ght.
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MR. PAULSON: So the greater is still
going to be 25. So unl ess the neighboring house
is at least 19 feet back, and clearly fromthe
photo it's not 19 feet back, 25 feet is the
appropriate standard for setback in staff view --

M5. LANG Yes --

MR. PAULSON: -- interpretation of the
or di nance.

M5. LANG -- in staff view

MR, PAULSON: Ckay. That's clear, |
t hi nk.

And then the other -- M. Lang, the other
I ssue, and | think | understand what your
testinony was, not only is the part of the fence
that parallels Aive Street too close, but also
the little bit of a wing between -- that
per pendi cul ar woul d al so have to be reduced to
4 feet if we were to find a 25-foot setback
requi renent, correct?

M5. LANG  Correct.

MR. PAULSON: The wings, | think I -- you
referred to themas, okay. Further questions?

MR. PASTRANA: How nmany ot her houses does
the fencing inpact in any way, just the one house

next to it?
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M5. LANG  Correct.

MR, PASTRANA: And that's the owner of
t he other house is the one whose e-mail is in this
packet ?

M5. LANG Yes. Several people actually
called and provided witten -- in support of this
applicant. So it would be an dive address. |
did not confirmif all the comments -- | nean,
only people within 100 feet were sent a notice of
this to weigh in.

MR PAULSON: So | think in the packet
we had a witten -- a handwitten notice fromthe
residents at 2501 East dive, and a witten copy
of an e-mail fromresidents at 4214 North Stowel |l .
Wel |, those are the two itens |I'm aware of.

MR. PASTRANA: Right.

MR. BAYER: Chai rman Paul son, | forgot
to nmention, before we take the vote | just want to
rem nd you, we should pause and then reflect the
portion of the public hearing, and just ask if
there's any public coment. And we'll do that
first on the other ones just to get that out of
t he way before there's any discussion.

MR. PAULSON:. Onh, okay.

MR. BAYER: Just because that's the way

15
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It's noticed or agenda’'d. So | just forget to

mention that when | nentioned the standards, so |

apol ogi ze.

MR. PAULSON: So any ot her questions of
staff?

MR. MJELLER:  No.

MR. PAULSON:. For the applicant?

MR, DASSOWN  Yeah.

MR. PAULSON: Pl ease swear himin.

M5. LANG Oh, yes. kay. Rick, raise

your right hand.

MR. PAULSON: Don't worry about the
m crophone, it's not working.

Rl CHARD DASSOW being first duly sworn,
testified as foll ows:

MR, PAULSON: Woul d you pl ease state your
name and occupati on?

MR. DASSOWN Rick Dassow, the owner of
| deal Property Managemnent.

MR. PAULSON: And you are here
representing the applicants?

MR. DASSOWN Tom and Laura Gough. W
constructed this fence on the premse of | did
apply for a fence permt, we replaced this -- This

fence that we constructed was a replacenent of a
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fence of conparable height that was built in 1998.

So when this was applied for, being a
corner |l ot and no back yard, the -- ny client, the
homeowner, believes the side yard is their back
yard. That -- That's -- There's 5 to 9 foot
vari ance on the back on the northern side of this
hone, so they really have no rear yard, so to
speak. So this southern side yard is their --
what they classify as their rear yard.

And | thought everything was on board as
far as the fence. | can see clearly why this
woul d be classified as the front yard because it
exceeds the front face of the building. | guess
repl aci ng the existing fence of conparabl e hei ght
didn't raise an eyebrow in ny eyes.

And the hardship is the security of
grandchil dren according to the honmeowner. And
that's their nunber one prem se of reconstructing
this fence with a secure gate.

MR. PAULSON: Was the preexisting
fence -- |Is the new fence the sane height as the
preexi sting fence?

MR. DASSOWN It is. This variance of
fence hei ght accommobdat es the el evati ons where the

top line or top edge of the fence is parallel and
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pl unb.

MR, PAULSON:. Okay. So it's -- it's
only -- The fact that there is a slight variance
is only because the yard slopes slightly, but it's
at the sane eye level, if you will, of the prior
fence?

MR. DASSOWN O the prior fence.

MR. PAULSON:. Okay. So there has been no
i ncrease in the overall height of the fence?

MR. DASSOWN Not at all. The previous
fence was lattice at the top 18 inches, which can
be construed still as the sanme fence.

MR. PAULSON: In |looking at the picture
as drawn, it looks |ike the neighboring property
on dive Street, its garage -- call it the street
edge of that garage is roughly conparable to the
street -- to the edge of this fence?

VMR, DASSOWN Correct.

MR. PAULSON: Any further questions?

It seenms -- The facts seemfairly straightforward
here. But questions?

MR. PASTRANA: Do you know i f when the
house was purchased if -- if it was -- Do you know
when t he house was purchased by your clients?

MR. DASSOW  Approximately 24 years ago.

18
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3

PASTRANA: Did they build the old
f enci ng?

DASSOWN  They di d.

PASTRANA: Ckay. Was that --
DASSOW I n 1998.

PASTRANA: I n '98.

23 333

DASSON So 18 years ago.

3

PASTRANA: Before then do you know
what there was, if there was a fence that was
within code or --

MR. DASSOWN | don't re -- | don't know
t hat .

MR. MJELLER: You didn't build the fence
in 1988 -- or '98?
DASSOWN No, | didn't.
MJUELLER. Did you neasure it --

2 D3

DASSOW | di d.

MR. MJELLER: -- before you put this one
in? And it was 5 feet, give or take, for sone
el evation --

MR. DASSOW Correct.

MR. MUJELLER -- is ny understandi ng.

MR, PAULSON: Ckay. Anything -- Any
further questions?

M5. LANG  Chairnman Paul son, if | may
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add that -- | nean, this fence code and the 4-foot
hei ght has been on the codes for decades.

MR, PAULSON: | know. So the prior fence
was probably in violation

M5. LANG Right, nonconform ng.

MR. PAULSON: Not probably, but it was in
violation. Gkay. Anything further to say?

MR DASSOWN | don't think so. | just --
| don't knowif it's nmuch of an argunent that the
client, Tom and Laura Gough, are stating that they
do not have a rear yard. | don't knowif that's
an argunent. Their front yard -- the front face
of the house is the front face of the house, which
faces Aive, so --

PAULSON: That's --
DASSON That's all | have to say.
PAULSON: Okay. Thank you.

23 3 2

DASSOWN  Thank you.

MR. PAULSON: |Is there anyone el se who
wants to give any testinony on this particul ar
matt er ?

Heari ng none, testinony is closed.

And now for discussion, observations.
MR. PASTRANA: | find it interesting that

the prior fence was also in violation of code
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probably -- or certainly. | wonder what hei ght
t he previous fence was, so -- Not that it nakes a
di fference actually, but --

MR. MJELLER  Yeah, | nean, it strikes ne
that when | ook at it, whether the hardship is
due to physical limtation. You know, | think we
have that satisfied here, as we've done in the
past, we've got a corner lot wth the back yard
basi cally being on the side of the house. So |
don't have a problemw th that.

Do | think that granting the variance
would not harmthe public interest? | think it's
in the public interest to keep the fence as
constructed. There's been sone input, and that
seens positive and it would be consistent with the
conmuni ty.

The challenge that | think we face often
t hat we have i s whether or not an unnecessary
har dshi p exi sts because conpliance i s unreasonably
burdensone. And |I'm not sure how to address that,
M ke. |'d welcone your comments on it.

| nmean, it strikes ne that conpliance is
unr easonabl y burdensonme if you view that as
per haps a privacy or security concern for the

children or for the grandchildren, whoever m ght
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be using that back yard. And is that -- does that
justify the heightened fence, and the burden --

Alternatively, | think it would be
unr easonabl y burdensone, it strikes ne, to all ow
t hese people not to basically repair or
reconstruct that fence if it was that height to
begin with. That's the other angle that I
consider on it, but I think we oftentines struggle
with this -- with this third elenent. And so
those are ny prelimnary thoughts.

MR. PAULSON: Yeah. Wen | originally
| ooked at this, I"'mstruck by this is sort of a
normal , at | east not atypical corner lot for
Shor ewood, where you're going to have this 25-foot
set back issue. And there's nothing at |east on
t he topography of this particular |ot that strikes
me as particularly unusual.

On the other hand, the one thing that I
see that nakes this sort of unique is the fact
that we are dealing with only two properties on
this Aive Street section of the -- of the bl ock,
and that the neighboring property is considerably
closer to Aive Street than this particul ar house.

It doesn't change the setback issue, it

still reading the code literally is a 25-foot

22
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set back requirenent.

On the other hand, it's clear that a
5-foot fence here, given the neighboring house
that's 21 story -- 20 feet or nore higher, we're
not causi ng an unusual intervention in
streetscape, if you will, or where this is an
unusual extension into the streetscape.

And ny concern is how we can di stingui sh
this property fromthe many other corner lots
where we're always -- or any other front yard
where we don't want 5-foot fences. The Zoning
Code is very clear that there ought not be any
t here.

| nean, it's clear -- | nean, except for
violating the literal provisions of the code and
our general standard of no 5-foot fence in the
front yard, | don't see any other detrinment from
granting a variance here.

l'"mstruggling with the requirenent in
t he code that we find exceptional circunstances,
sonet hi ng unusual or extraordi nary or exceptional
wth this particular property. Because clearly
literally it would not have been a hardship, nor
Is any particular hardship clained to actually

build a 4-foot fence in this particular |ocation.

23
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And it's also clear fromthat vertical --
fromthe aerial photograph that the |ayout of the
yard is set up to nmaximze the use of this side --
side yard, front yard, w thout obstructing the
I ntersection, the view of the intersection, nor
t he view of the neighbors. So a fence would not
| npose a hardshi p.

To put it the other way, on the flip side
of it, it's not going to inpose a hardship in any
di recti on.

You can see how we are struggling here.
Any ot her comments in |ight of what |'ve said?

MR MJELLER: No, | agree with that. As
| think about it, | feel like the -- it strikes ne
that the hardship is associated with the fact that
there was this preexisting fence that was present.
Whet her or not that was conform ng, you know, it
stood for alnost 20 years without -- sounds |ike
w t hout action fromthe nei ghborhood or --

MR. PASTRANA: Ri ght.

MR. MJELLER: -- fromthe Village. And
so barring sonething unusual, the property owner
coul d have kept that dil apidated fence in place
potentially and renained in conpliance. So it

strikes ne that not permtting themto replace and
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| nprove that aging structure would work an
unr easonabl e hardshi p and may be unnecessary.

And so, you know, it's a difficult case
for me that -- that way, that lends itself to
finding that there's exceptional circunstances
here that distinguish it from other cases, coupled
wth the fact that it's an unusual, you know,
corner | ot as we've addressed.

I think 1'd be satisfied based upon
that that the exceptional circunstance is not
applicable to others and that their conpliance
woul d be unreasonably burdensone.

The second factor about no detrinent to
surroundi ng properties and it's in the public
interest, | think there's evidence in the record
to satisfy that as clearly a good thing, not
contrary to the Vill age.

So based on that, | would be in favor of
maki ng such a finding. And I guess | could go
ahead and nake a notion to --

MR, PAULSON: Ckay.

MR. MJELLER  -- approve the request.

MR. PASTRANA: Second.

MR. PAULSON:. Do we have any further

di scussi on now that we have a notion on the table?
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And | want to nmake sure that the two
docunents fromthe neighbors that were part of the
packet are nade part of the file so that they are
part of the record.

M5. LANG Yes, it's already attached.

MR. PAULSON:. Al right. Any further
di scussi on?

MR. PASTRANA: | nean, | think in a way
it would al nost be in effect punishing the owner
for instead of just painting the existing fence,
actually replacing it, like you said, which is
actually an inmprovenent. And | think the spirit
of the section of the code can't outweight that,
you know, that the fact that the owner actually
tried to spruce up the property, if you will. So
| agree, | would nove to approve the variance as
wel | as second.

M5. LANG  Chairnman Paul son, if | may. |

just -- |I'm questioning the reasoni ng behind that
because the premse is that staff didn't -- these
are ny words, not yours -- do their job. W don't

actively enforce nonconformng itens, we wait till
they get to a stage of unrepair, or in this case
of replacenent. |If this is the precedent, | don't

know how we can ever --
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MR, PAULSON:  Yeah.

M5. LANG -- justify us saying now you
need to conformto current code, you know.

MR. PAULSON: And | don't think that was
the inplication --

MR. MJELLER:  No.

MR. PAULSON: -- of either of the
menbers, that the current code is not enforceabl e,
if there were a preexisting violation, that we
couldn't force residents to cone up to code. So
no, that's not the inplication.

The inplication, as | understand it, is
that in this particular case given the shape of
the lot, the use of the side yard, and its
rel ati onship both to the intersection and to the
adj oining property, it constitutes an unusual
circunstance that would justify the granting of a
variance in the eyes of the nenbers.

MR. BAYER: By way of context, just as
an exanple, if you have a property that has either
a building constructed on it or a condition on it
t hat predates adoption of a code, and so it's an
al | owabl e nonconform ng use; say, you know, the
cl assic exanple, you have a bar that ends up in a

residential area after growmh. |[If the -- There's
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a threshold past which you can no | onger conti nue
t he nonconform ng use of it. |If it burns to the
ground, you can't put another bar there.

And so just by way of background because
of the way the discussion was goi ng, a precedent
of nonconform -- accepted nonconform ng use
under -- under the code and under the State
Statutes doesn't necessarily support a conti nuing
use past -- you know, past certain -- But | just
gi ve that as background and context to the
di scussi on.

PAULSON: Any further discussion?
PASTRANA: No.

MUELLER: ( Shakes head.)

PAULSON: Could staff call the roll?
LANG  Sure.

29 % 32D

PAUL SON: Go ahead.

o

LANG Ready to vote. Al right.
Carl os Pastrana?
MR. PASTRANA: | approve the variance.
M5. LANG Lance Mieller?
MR MJELLER 1'll vote yes.
M5. LANG And M chael Paul son?
MR. PAULSON: No. But it doesn't change

the fact that the notion for a variance is

28
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granted, so you can keep the fence the way it is.
Thank you.

MR. DASSOWN Al right. Thank you.

MR. PAULSON: That concludes this matter.
The Village Attorney --

MR. BAYER: I'll just note that also the
next requested item under agenda itemNo. 7 is
al so a request for a variance, and the sane
criteria would apply when deci ding whether to
grant the vari ance.

And because there's a public hearing
associated wth these, and because the packet went
out wwth all of the information, just to nake it
real clean for the record and for the mnutes, ny
recomendati on would just be to open it up for --
to open up the public hearing, see if there's any
coments, close the public hearing, and then go
I nto our --

MR. PAULSON: Al right.

MR. BAYER. Right.

MR, PAULSON: For the record, | will open
the public hearing on item No. 7, which is, Appeal
of the building inspector denial to install an
air-conditioning unit within the zoning side yard

setback at the residential property 3564 and 66
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Nort h Frederick Avenue.
Openi ng the public hearing. 1Is there any

menmber of the public who wi shes to speak on this

matt er ?

MR. BAYER: O her than the applicant.

MR. PAULSON:. O her than the applicant.
Heari ng none, we'll close the public hearing and
we'll go to the formal hearing before the Board of
Appeal s. And staff previously sworn will present

this matter.

M5. LANG Ckay. Well, the Village of
Shor ewood recei ved a Board of Appeal s Application
Sept enber 9th of this year from property owners
Steve and Ziou (phonetic) -- Xiu --

MR MARTINIE: Xiu is fine.

M5. LANG -- Xiu Qong Mrtinie.

And | can give you -- Wuld you |like the
spel i ngs now?

THE REPORTER: Now or l|ater, it doesn't
matter.

M5. LANG And they're appealing the
deni al of placing an HVAC air-conditioning unit
wthin the street side yard setback. So the
applicant is requesting a variance to that

requi renent.
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The property is a two-famly
si de-by-side, so they're townhones. And as it
said, they're | ocated on a corner property in the
R-6 zoning district. And the AC unit, you have an
aerial and you have a survey in your packet, and
It shows it proposed on the northern side. So
that's the northern unit, the side-by-side, which
IS the corner street side.

Per Zoni ng Code Section 535-19F(5), it
states that the side, so that's -- I'"'msorry. Sub
5 sub Csub 2 -- Is that how you say it?

MR. BAYER: Sub C sub 2.

M5. LANG Sub 2. It says for the side
street side setback, 25 percent of the w dth of
the |l ot but not |less than 10 feet, provided that
the buildable width of the ot shall not be |ess
than 20 feet. Ckay.

So in ny |last paragraph in the nenorandum
| go through the cal culations, so |I'mjust going
to read through that. So any structure on this
parcel that nust be 31.25 feet back fromthe
street side property boundary. So if you | ook at
the survey, the width of the lot is 125 feet w de,
and the house is located 19.7 feet averaged --

which is averaged, fromthe side boundary al ong
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Menl o Avenue. The AC unit would be conpletely
wthin the side yard setback. G ven the house is
not set back 31.25 feet fromthe property
boundary, it's considered a | egal nonconform ng
structure.

Let me see if | gave you any additi onal
materials worth noting. W have the deni al
|l etter, we have the application, the aerial and
the survey. No, that's all | have to add to this
one.

MR, PAULSON: Okay. Any questions of

staff?

MR. PASTRANA: Just to be clear, on the
aerial photograph the -- where exactly is the
unit? | nmean -- | don't nean the house, | nean

the air-conditioning unit.

M5. LANG Do you have the survey in
your packet? There's a little yellow square. |
shoul d have printed that in color for you.

PAULSON: It's --
LANG It should be --

PASTRANA: Right. Here. Just --

MR
VB
MR, PAULSON: Just after the photograph.
MR
MR. PAULSON: On the front, yes. There's
X

alittle
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VR. PASTRANA:

Yeah, | |

at that and figure it out.

Ckay. |

have it.

proposed unit

exi sting --

M5. LANG (Oh,

MR, PASTRANA:

see the cover
Put it here.
MR, PAULSON:

M5. LANG |

f or

okay.

think |

ust want to | ook

can now, Yyes.

it, so okay. | think I

And this area where the

don'

have to |l et the applicant

VR. PASTRANA:

tall the fence is.

M5. LANG Yeah,

front view picture of the

every copy,

packet ,

pi cture,

hei ght .

VR, PAULSON:

t know.
say.

was goi

house.

is to be placed is behind an

exi sting 4-foot fence?

' mgoing to

ng to ask how

didn't provide a

That - -

Yes, it is.

M5. LANG Is it on-line?

VR. PAULSON:

Yeabh.

M5. LANG  Ckay.

| don'

pi ece of material in

t always keep

nmy personal

SO -- Is there a fence in the picture?

VR, PAULSON:

There is a fence in the

and it looks to be 4 feet or less in

Not meaning to introduce anot her issue.

MR MARTI N E:

haven' t

measured it.
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MR. PASTRANA: | have a question. \What
would -- What could cure this effect and put them
in conpliance with the code; w ndow
air-conditioners, is that the only way?

M5. LANG O putting it in the back
yard, but actually --

MR. PASTRANA: There's not nmuch of a back

yard.

M5. LANG Fromthe picture we have,
there's -- 4 feet is therear. So it wuld be in
the rear setback as well, if they put it back
t here.

MR. PASTRANA: Wen you say "back there,"
what do you nean because | don't see --

M5. LANG Back in the rear yard, which
is only 4 feet, their back yard.

MR. PASTRANA: Ckay.

M5. LANG So -- And the zoning rear
setbacks in the R5 and R 6 residential district
Is 3 feet, so it absolutely would be in the rear
setback if it was proposed there. And so that
woul d al so cone here in your consideration.

MR. PASTRANA: And there's no issue with
It being so close to the other house?

MR. PAULSON: Yeah, there --
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M5. LANG Can you restate that question?

MR. PASTRANA: There would be no issue
with the unit -- with the air-conditioning unit
bei ng so close to the 2105 house?

M5. LANG You nean behind it?

MR, PASTRANA: Yeah.

M5. LANG No, there would be an issue.
It would be in the --

MR. PASTRANA: Right.

M5. LANG -- rear setback, so it
would -- they would al so appeal that if that woul d
have been the ideal |ocation.

MR. PASTRANA: Ri ght.

MR. BAYER: | think what he was asking,
Is there anywhere that you could put it?

MR, PASTRANA: Exactly.

M5. LANG Oh. The other side, but that
woul d not be very functional now, would it? On
the other -- on the side of the other unit on the
sout hern end of the parcel.

MR. BAYER: And that would conply with --

M5. LANG Between the garage. Yeah.

Bet ween t he garage and the house.
MR. PASTRANA:  Ckay.
M5. LANG  That woul d be about it.

35
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MR. PASTRANA: Ri ght.

MR. PAULSON: Any further questions?
Your turn.

MR. MARTINIE: Ckay.

MR, PAULSON: Woul d pl ease state your
name for the -- and address for the record?

MR. MARTINIE: Steve Martinie.

M5. LANG OCh, yes. | don't usually do
this job.

STEVE MARTI NI E, being first duly sworn,
testified as fol |l ows:

MR. MARTINI E: Thank you for taking tine
to hear this appeal. As you heard, the property
Is on the corner again, and it is a side-by-side
duplex. And it was built in 1927, | believe, in
the early 20s, which is apparently before there
wer e setback requirenents in the Village of
Shorewood. So the issue basically is the existing
building is closer to the street than is ideal by
t he code.

The reason we want to have
air-conditioning is it's a rental property and it
obviously -- sumer is not too far away, as you
renenber, and air-conditioning helps confort, it's

good for the health sonetines. | actually had
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severe allergies as a child, so it helps with

that. It reduces the effect of humdity, |ike
nmold. It increases the property value so you can
raise ny taxes. It -- It can reduce noise. And

realize it also nmakes sonme noi se, but al so reduce
noi se in the sense of windows are nore likely

cl osed, and noise not going in and out of the
building. It can help reduce crine in the sense
t hat open wi ndows can be an invitation or

percei ved invitation by crimnals.

And this particular property is two
bl ocks fromthe corner of UWM And as a result,
It draws a |l ot of interest fromthe students.

And there are many fine students and fine student
tenants, but our preference is to rent to
famlies. And this is a feature that particularly
would -- since it's a large unit, it tends to | ead
to a bigger unit, so it comands hi gher rent, and
having this feature would nmake it nore attractive
to famlies or to tenants.

And sone of our tenants have used w ndow
air-conditioners which are |less attractive,
they're less energy efficient, they' re noisy, and
they tend to strain existing circuits on the

electric of the property.
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The -- O course, to have an
air-conditioner you have to have a condenser,
whi ch has to be outside for exhausting the hot
air. And there are -- this building does have
four sides, but two are pretty nmuch nonstarters.
The front yard is certainly not an attractive
place to put it, and contrary to the code.

The back yard, as we nentioned before, is
just very, very small. |I'mnot sure if it would
be very close to or on the lot line. And it would
be under the wi ndows of the adjacent buil ding.

And al t hough that building has very little
di stance to ook to the west, it does have w ndows
on that side. So that's not attractive.

That | eaves the south side. The north
side -- The south side has a rather small side
yard, so this would certainly kind of dom nate or
at | east inconvenience the tenants. And they're
not the ones who are benefiting fromthis
air-conditioner being put in, it's for the north
side. And it requires the line-sets to go through
their unit.

W try to keep the units as integral as
possi ble. They basically share a comon wall and

a common utility space, otherwise they're pretty
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much i ndependent. And as Justin explained, it
would require the line to go across existing
si dewal k, which woul d be problematic too.

So that | eaves the north side, which is
what we're proposing. The -- That would be the
shortest route for the line-sets. |t would be
behi nd existing fence, so it wouldn't be seen
readily fromthe street. And it would be furthest
away fromthe nei ghboring properties.

The proposal where the X is on the
survey is further to the west of the side of that
north wall of the house, and it wll -- that
side's sone distance fromthe adjacent property,
and it would probably be farther fromtheir
W ndows as nany existing conpletely |legal, you
know, conform ng air-conditioners tend to be
ri ght now.

So I think that, you know, the benefits
to the air-conditioning will neet the public
benefit test.

And the detrinment will -- is -- will be
strongly mtigated by the location of it, away
fromthe existing neighboring property, and it's
near no ot her property because it's a corner unit.

MR. PAULSON: Do you have any questions?
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MR. PASTRANA: The air-conditioning unit
benefits both parts of the -- of the duplex or
j ust one?

MR. MARTINIE: Just the one. W treat
t hem as separate units, and it benefits the north
side. The south happens to have sone por -- sone
of the portable push air-conditioner units, but
they're not, you know, satisfactory |like centra
air.

MR. PASTRANA: Does it sort of inpact
what you -- you know, the rent you charge for each
unit, the fact that one of them has an
air-conditioning -- central air-conditioning, the
ot her one doesn't?

MR MARTINIE: | think at the present
time the rents are |like $50 difference.

MR. PASTRANA: $50 difference.

MR. MARTINIE: But we signed this | ease
bef ore we pushed the air-conditioning forward. It
was not a problemat the tine.

MR. PAULSON: Any ot her questions?

And | take it there is -- the only
ot her -- When you're tal king about putting it on
the south side, it would be behind the garage in

t hat sonewhat snmall space behind the garage?
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MR MARTINIE: It would have to be on
the south side. There is a fenced-in area
above -- the garage is -- there's a wall beside
the garage, and it would be on the area above the
wal |, | believe.

MR. PAULSON: Ckay.

MR MARTINIE: So it would basically be
on the sane -- actually a little bit closer to the
property on Menl o because of the wal kway than this
proposed | ocation. So either |ocation would be
close to that rental property. It runs the whole
| engt h of our property.

MR. PAULSON: | look at this one as one
of those unusual circunstances where the
configuration of the lot and the configuration of
the building is such that there's no other

practical |ocation for the condenser unit,

except -- no reasonable | ocation except in the
proposed unit -- proposed |location on the north
side. It's -- Any other | ocation would either

requi re a conparabl e variance, or inpose further
restrictions on the use of the property.

So in ny view we have unusual and speci al
circunstances where literal enforcenent does cause

a practical difficulty. Gven the size of this --
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t hese structures and the shape of the lot, this is
not sonething that we're going to be seeing very
often. This is not a standard issue of | ot
configuration or zoning setbacks because of the
corner | ot configuration here.

And given that we are putting a unit
behind a fence in the location that's essentially
t he nost renpbved of any |ocation on this property
from adj acent properties, there is clearly no
detriment to either the community or the adjacent
properties in ny view

So | would support a notion to grant the
vari ance for those reasons.

MR, PASTRANA: [|'ll second.

MR. PAULSON: | guess | made the notion,
and it's seconded. Any further discussion?

Ckay. Call the roll, please.

M5. LANG  Carl os Pastrana.

MR. PASTRANA: Yes.

M5. LANG  Lance Mueller.

MR. MJELLER  Yes.

M5. LANG  Chai rman Paul son.

MR. PAULSON: Yes. The variance is
grant ed.

MR, MARTI N E: Thank you.

42
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MR. PAULSON: Enjoy. O have your
tenants enjoy their air-conditioning.

Ckay. Item No. 8, we'll call the public
hearing for the appeal of a building inspector
denial to install a parking slab w thout a garage
at residential property 1701-03 North Menlo
Boul evard.

MR. CURRO  East.

MR. PAULSON: East Menlo -- Yeah, that's
true. There is no north/south Menlo. 1Is there
any nenber of the public, other than the
applicants, who wi sh to speak?

Seei ng none, we'll close the public
hearing and we'll open our hearing. The staff,
havi ng previously been sworn, please present this
matter.

M5. LANG The Village received this
Board of Appeal s Application on Septenber 6th of
this year -- 7th, I"'msorry, of this year from
M. Janmes Curro, who is in the audi ence here.

They are appeal ing the decision of the
bui | di ng i nspector's denial to construct a parKking
slab in the rear property, and that's because our
code states that driveways nust | ead to garages

for one and two-famly districts. So this
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property is an R 6 zoning district, which all ows
one and two-famly dwellings. Per Code Section
535-9F(4) under Site Restrictions it says,

Dri veways shall not be constructed unl ess they

| ead to a garage.

And then there's anot her applicabl e code
In the Zoni ng Code, which is 535-47A(4)(b), under
Schedul e of requirenents which states, Two-famly
dwel lings: One space in an inproved garage per
dwel ling unit, which this then requires a
two-famly dwelling to have a two-fam |y garage,
and allows up to a two-car parking sl ab.

So here the application and the buil ding
application was for a parking slab but there is no
garage. And per the Village of Shorewood property
records, there was never a garage on this site.

The site is a bit unique because in the
rear yard there is a slope, so | just want to go
t hrough sone of the property's dinmensiona
nunbers. So the lot is 47.55 feet wde. A
rem nder that |lots have to be a mni num of 40 feet
W de, so that's good there. And it's 109.99 feet
deep.

| gave you |lots of pictures of the

property and sone of the surroundi ng properties
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on that side street along Menlo. There's actually
quite a few properties on that bl ock that don't
have garages, and |'m assuni ng because of the
slope at the rear of them So it's -- | would say
| measured approximately 20 feet of the rear | ot
Is sloped. Al right. So that | eaves what, 89
feet that's not. | gave you a contour nap that
shows that | think it's every 2 feet the line
represents, so there is about a 7- to 8-foot drop
down fromthe main |l evel of the property.

| did add in ny nenorandumto you t hat
garages are usually at m ni num 20- by-20 feet,
which is 400 square feet. In the opinion of
staff, there is roomfor a garage, but again,

t here has never been a garage there. The house
was built in 1943 without a garage, nmaking it a
| egal nonconform ng use of a |ot.

So | gave you aerials of the bl ock, as |
said, pictures of other properties as well. The
survey has a markup of the proposed slab in
yel l ow, and | added sone additional dinensions on
that survey. And that's all staff has for now

MR. PAULSON: Do you have any questions?

MR. MUELLER: No questi ons.

MR. PASTRANA: ( Shakes head.)
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MR. PAULSON: |If the garage were built,
what would a -- let's say it would be a two-car
garage, which would be roughly 20-by-20?

MS. LANG  Correct.

MR, PAULSON: So this proposed -- And
t he Zoning Code would also permt in addition to
t hat 20- by-20 garage, another 20-by-20, roughly,
par ki ng sl ab?

MS. LANG  Correct.

MR. PAULSON: And the proposed -- based
on your diagramhere, | can't conpute area real
accurately, given that it's at a diagonal, but it
would seemto ne that the proposed coverage of
this proposed slab based on your diagram woul d be
roughly conparable to the coverage or sonmewhat
| ess than the coverage -- | ot coverage of a garage
wth a two-car parking slab?

M5. LANG Yeah. The applicant did
provide a | arger scale of the proposed sl ab, that
It's 20 feet wde and 40 feet deep, but then,
right, it doesn't take in that angle either, which
| can quick calculate. It's alittle bigger, in
my opi ni on.

MR. PAULSON. Ckay. But --

M5. LANG That's where I'"'mgoing with --
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MR. PAULSON: -- in the sane genera
order of nagnitude that a garage and two- parki ng
slab -- two-car parking slab --

M5. LANG  Yes.

MR, PAULSON: -- would have? And in
addition, the |l and behind the proposed slot, at
| east as | read your diagrans and read your
presentation, is essentially unusabl e because of
a vertical slope?

M5. LANG As is, correct.

MR, PAULSON: And | ooking at your aeri al
photo of Menlo Boulevard, it |ooks to ne |ike
several of the properties on this bl ock do not
have garages, but do have parking sl abs of
approxi mately the sanme dinmension as this proposed
sl ab?

M5. LANG  About the sane di nensions?

MR PAULSON: In a-- I"'mnot trying to
equat e square footage or ask for a precise
equi val ence, but rather are they generally -- does
it ook like the adjacent -- sonme of the
nei ghbori ng properties have sl abs that | ook
roughly conparable to the gravel slab that is
currently existing on this |ocation?

M5. LANG Yes. Yes, they do.
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MR, PAULSON:. Okay. And inmmediately
behind this property is the housing conplex and
par ki ng and access roads for the housing conpl ex
behind it, the -- the nulti-tenant high-rise, if
you wll?

M5. LANG Correct. And that's about
400 units in two buil dings.

MR. PAULSON: Ckay.

MR, PASTRANA: Is it just -- You know,
1627 and 1613 appear to have concrete sl abs
already built, right, you said?

M5. LANG  Correct.

MR. PASTRANA: It could be a -- right,
correct, could be an aerial shot of the garage
roof actually. But 1627 seens to have a concrete
slab built in, for sure.

MR. MUJELLER R ght.

MR. PAULSON: Ckay.

M5. LANG  That property actually cane

before -- Never m nd. It has a variance for this.

MR, PASTRANA: It does?

M5. LANG Three nonths ago, four nonths
ago.

MR. BAYER: | don't know if that's the

property.
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M5. LANG This is.

MR. PAULSON: Okay. Any further
questions of staff?

The applicants?

MR. CURRO Hi.

M5. LANG | just want to clarify now
that nenory's comng back. It was 1623 that was
. (staff correction:
granted a vari ance. property is 1627-29 Menlo)

MR. PAULSON: To --

M5. LANG  Because they did not find
enough room because of the depth of the house to
get a garage in there and to park adequately.

MR. PAULSON:. So they were granted a
variance to --

M5. LANG To replace their parking slab
and driveway that did not lead to a garage, and it
was determ ned because of the depth of the
dwelling it did not allow for construction.

MR, PAULSON: And this was at which
address, just --

M5. LANG 16 --

MR. MJELLER: |'ve got 1627 and 29. |Is
it a duplex there?

M5. LANG Maybe this doesn't natter for

the record. | apologize. | just thought it would
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be fresh in M. Paulson's mnd and M. Muel |l er.
| don't know if you were --
MR. MJELLER | renenber it.
M5. LANG You were. Ckay. You renenber
it?
MUELLER: | do.
PASTRANA: Is it your --
LANG It was this year

25 3 3

MUELLER: Yeah.

3

PASTRANA: Is it your position that
that variance is unusual in any way fromthis one,
fromthis request?

M5. LANG | differentiate it because the
| ot was narrower and because of the depth of the
house went back farther. So to ne it's different.
| didn't know if a nenber was going to bring it up
and say, you know, this is what we did there, so |
just wanted to point the difference out.

MR. PASTRANA:  Ckay.

MR. PAULSON: Now you'll be sworn.

Eri cka?

M5. LANG Ckay. M job. I'mfailing ny
j ob here.

JAMES CURRO, being first duly sworn,

testified as foll ows:
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MR. PAULSON: Pl ease state your nane.

MR, CURRO Janes J. CQurro. |I|I'mthe
co-owner with ny wife Elizabeth Sharp, and I'm
al so the contractor. Concrete. Jims Hone
| nprovenent. |'ma concrete contractor.

So when we bought the house in 2000, the
original driveway stopped at the back of the house
where the -- right where the house ends. And
t hose patios that you see on there were not there.
There was 10 feet of back yard. The yards weren't
di vided or anything, and then it was just trees
and slope all the way down to the other property,
to that alley back there.

So being in the concrete business, | was
told then if | did want to build a wall at the
base down there, that would require a footing,
that | could do tree -- tinbers, you know,
railroad ties. And | brought in giant railroad
ties. And | got those up to a level which still
gave ne |ike 20 feet.

We had a bunch of trees renoved, and then
| just started dunping dirt and concrete. And |
essentially made our yard, you know, the depth it
Is now, and then with the railroad ties.

And then | proceeded to pour the two
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pati os, build the fence, because we lived at 1701,
so we wanted -- you know, we were owner occupi ed,
we wanted to have our yard private. And the
tenants, even though you share a driveway, the
tenants have their own patio and their area. And
t hen over the -- So that's the original concrete
drive. There was never anything past there.

And over tinme | just always -- you know,
| put gravel down there, and then found out, you
know, you can't park on pavenent and you have to
get it poured. And, of course, it's like the
pai nter who was the last to paint his house, |'m
the last to pour concrete.

So initially I've been approved to -- way
back then | was approved to pour concrete. And
t hen we hemmed and hawed because we thought we
were going to stay there, let's build a garage
because we'll use the garage and we'll give the
tenants an outdoor parking space.

So |l went up with that idea even as -- up
till last year because -- or a couple years ago.
No, | ast year. Because it would be nore expensive
for me to -- if I"mgoing to pour concrete to do a
gar age sl ab.

But then now that we have two really good
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tenants in there, we bought another single-famly
house that we live in, and that's going to stay a
rental unit until, you know, we would sell it.

| reneasured for the -- for the garage,
and to do a 20-by-20 garage |I'd actually be | osing

a space because fromthe back of the house to the

front of the garage it would be hard to get -- it
woul d be hard to get one around this way. |[|'d
have to -- | could take out that little section of

grass there, but 1'd really essentially be | osing
a space, if not two, and then you'd have to have a
shared garage with tenants.

And -- and then there's the main wire --
there's wires that cone fromthat one post that
are -- that would have to be noved because the
roof would -- the roof would be in the way.

And so | just thought it's so nuch

nmore -- it's actually nore efficient for us to
just have, you know, four parking -- four spaces
they could drive into. There's still alittle

yard for the tenants on the east side, a little
grass area I'mgoing to kind of nake a little
nicer there. And -- And then, yeah, like | said,
It's just going to be -- it's just going to be

f our parking spaces.
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And then our tenant -- or our neighbor
| i ke three doors down had the exact sane thing,
except they had -- they had concrete and they just
replaced it. And then they cane for a variance
and were granted it.

And the only part | disagree with on that
Is it was basically exactly the sane. They're the
sanme houses. \Were -- Wiere | start the garage,
because | can't start it right at the back of
the -- you know, where the slope is, it's about,
|'d say, 5 feet off of there. And if you cone 20
feet fromthat, it just -- it just really | eaves
me no room you know. | nean, it would be nice to
have a garage if it was a single-famly, but in
this case | just want concrete.

MR. PAULSON: Ckay. And | take it from
the application that you are proposing concrete to
go where there is existing gravel, essentially
over where the existing gravel is?

MR. CURRO. Yeah, it's, you know, the
back of the house. Here's the existing driveway
ends here, and just like that diagram shows, |I'm
going to go on an angle to that little shed pad
and then cone across. And then | have to stay --

The other thing too is on the east side
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| have to stay 3 feet off the fence line. So that
brought ny -- Wien | neasured, that brought ny 20
feet further west than I woul d have wanted to be
with the garage. And it just -- it really -- |If
there's a garage there, you're going to pretty
much have two -- two parking spaces unless you
have soneone who wants to nove out of the way or
maybe go a little to the right, you know. But the
way -- if | just pour all concrete, you know, |
have nore par ki ng.

But again, | nean, | can -- | can pour a
garage, you know, cheaper because |I'mthe
contractor, but it's just I'd be losing -- |1'd be
| osi ng spaces over there. And that's not
attractive to tenants, especially for -- you know,
we get a decent anount of rent there because
they're side-by-side, it's a townhouse.

MR. PAULSON: Any questions?

MR. MUELLER: No questions from ne.

MR. PASTRANA: None.

MR. PAULSON: Thank you. Anyone el se
want to testify in this matter?

Seei ng none; comrents?

MR. MUJELLER: You know, | think the usual

analysis in ternms of hardship and the physi cal
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limtations, | see the topography as a l[imtation.
The fact that it's an old multi -- nulti-famly
dwel I'i ng.

MR. PASTRANA: Ri ght.

MR. MJELLER And so | see the physica
limtations there.

The necessary hardshi p, you know, al ong
the same -- sane lines, |I'd say you'd potentially
be | osi ng parking spaces if you' d be constructing
t he garage.

And then in terns of whether or not it's
consistent with the public interest, at |east one
or nore properties along that very bl ock have
cenent slabs as indicated. So just |ooking at the
property overview and the way that it backs up
there, | think that this slab as proposed woul d be
consistent with the public interest. Those are ny
initial thoughts.

MR, PAULSON: | would tend to concur that
the -- given the restricted area of it, of the
bui | dabl e usabl e parki ng portion of this |ot, that
this seens to be a practical consideration, given
that putting in an actual garage with the rear
slope limtations would cause a problem

| do recognize that this is different
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than the variance that was granted for a nei ghbor
down the street, given that the | ot dinensions
are different, a narrower |ot, but nevert hel ess,
this is a unique circunstance with this | ocation
of this particular property severely limted by

t hat backward sl ope and the anount of buil dable
area, so that -- And this is clearly not the sort
of situation that's going to be recurring except
along this particul ar bl ock.

MR. PASTRANA: Right.

MR. PAULSON: And then it essentially
becones a case-by-case determ nation for each
I ndi vidual | ot and what purpose is intended to be
met. There clearly does not seemto be any
detrinment either to the -- to the general public
interest, given that it was preexisting parking on
gravel .

MR. PASTRANA: Ri ght.

MR. PAULSON: Continued parking on
concrete, if anything, is an inprovenent.
Certainly it's not going to be adversely affecting
ei ther of the neighbors, certainly not the
nei ghbors to the south, and given the fences and
given the | ocations of the nei ghbors on either

side. So | could agree that this is a unique
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ci rcunst ance.

| nposing the obligation to build a garage
to nme woul d i npose an unreasonabl e hardshi p of
reduci ng the avail abl e parking on a nulti-tenant
property, so that in ny view we are neeting the --
both requirenents of 55 -- 555-5A (sic). So |
woul d nove that this variance be granted.

MR. MJUELLER: Second.

MR. PAULSON: Roll call?

M5. LANG You're voting?

MR. PAULSON: Yeah. | noved and it was
seconded.

MR. BAYER:. Any further discussion or
anyt hi ng?

M5. LANG You asked if there was
di scussi on?

May | just clarify sone things for the
record? | just want to clarify that the picture
that you see in there does show a fence down the
m ddl e of the rear yards. | don't want that to be
construed as that's all of the space that the
property has.

MR. PAULSON: Ch, no. | recognize that
that's --

M5. LANG And -- Pardon?
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MR. PASTRANA: No, |'m aware of that.

M5. LANG Ckay. And you're right, the
ot her property that was granted vari ance had a
nonconformng lot wdth of 35 feet, and this one
has 47 feet and 12-foot w de parking driveway.

And | just wanted to nmake the nenbers
aware of that we have about two dozen properties
|'d say that don't have garages in the Vill age.

We have a very high nunber of rental
properties, we're right next to UWM And in the
ten years |'ve been here there's been overcrowdi ng
I ssues. And that's another reason why we would --
we're striving, the staff is striving to get this
opportunity to require garages where there i s none
when -- when it fits because we have received
conpl ai nts when there is no garage and stacking
and stacking and stacking of cars on lots. | can
certainly provide records on that, conplaints on
t hat .

It is the staff's opinion that a two-car
garage would fit on this investnent property | ot
wi t hout having to touch the bluff area because of
the width and because of the w der driveway that
allows for an easy turning radius.

That's all | wanted to clarify.
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MR. PAULSON:. Okay. In light of staff's
comments and in light of the prior discussion,

is there any further discussion on the notion?

3

PASTRANA:  No.

PAULSON:  Roll call.

LANG Ckay. Carlos Pastrani.
PASTRANA: Yes. Pastrana.
LANG Pastrana. | apol ogi ze.
PASTRANA: That's fi ne.

LANG Lance Muel |l er.

MUELLER:  Yes.

LANG And M chael Paul son.
PAULSON:  Yes.

CURRO  Thank you, guys.

233D 20D 3P DD D

PAULSON:  Thank you.

Now we go to the public hearing on item
No. 9, the Appeal to construct a detached garage
above the zoni ng maxi nrum area all owed at
residential property 4324 North Wodburn Street.

QG her than the applicant, is there any
menber of the public who wi shes to speak to this
matt er ?

Heari ng none, we'll close the public
heari ng and nove towards the fornmal part of our

hearing. And wll staff present this matter?
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M5. LANG Ckay. The Village received a
Board of Appeals Application August 30th of 2016
fromthe property owner Douglas Eiring, who is
with us this evening. He submitted a building
application to raze his existing detached garage,
and replace it with a | arger detached garage.

That buil di ng applicati on was deni ed because the
pr oposed garage exceeds the all owable size for the
size of the lot that his single-famly hone is on.

The property is in an R- 6 zoning
district, which is a one- and two-famly zoning
district, and per Zoning Code Section 535-19F(6)
allows up to 10 percent of the ot for an
accessory structure in that district. Ckay.

So the nunbers show that the ot is 40
feet wiwde, typical for an R-5 and R 6 district, by
124.15 feet deep. That totals 4,960 square feet
for the total lot. 10 percent of the | ot would
equate to 493 square feet. The proposed garage is
576 square feet, which is a difference of 83
square feet above what is all owed.

This is a single-fam |y house, so by the
Zoni ng Code they are allowed -- they are required
one -- a one-car garage and up to one additi onal

par ki ng slab on the side. The proposal is for a
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two-car garage. And | provided you with an aeri al
survey. The building application and el evations
were provided to see what the proposal is.
Pictures. That's all | have.

MR. PAULSON: And for the record, Ericka,
woul d you pl ease do the cal cul ati on of what 500 --
what percentage 576 is of the total lot? In
the -- Of the top of ny head, | think it cones
out to sonething |ike 12 percent, but -- or |ess.
But I'd just like the nunber in the record.

M5. LANG 11.6.

MR, PAULSON: Pardon?

M5. LANG 11.6 percent of the total lot.

MR, PASTRANA: 11.6, right.

MR. PAULSON: Any questions of staff on
this matter?

MR. PASTRANA: So to state the obvious,
we're talking 1.6 percent over, right?

M5. LANG  Correct.

MR. PAULSON:. Any further questions of
staff at this point?

Applicant? Thank you for your patience.

MR EIRRNG OCh, I'mfine.

DOUG.AS EIRING being first duly sworn,

testified as foll ows:
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MR EIRING | have a whole big thing I
was going to tal k about, but we're going to keep
it very informal. W did accept the denial and we
told our builder, go ahead with a snaller garage.
And he took down our little garage and put the
outline of what the new snmall er garage woul d | ook
li ke.

And after having seen it, ny famly and
| all agreed that it was too small for what we
needed. And what we need is a | arger garage
because ny wife is disabled, she's handi capped.
She has a State-issued handi cap designation. She
has spinal stenosis and lupus and it's not getting
any better.

And | have just, as a matter of fact, got
rid of ny old car and purchased a m ni van t hat
wi || accommbdate a wheelchair or a scooter. That
| ooks like it's going to be a scooter, that has
wor ked out well in the past when we've rented them
at State Fair and D sney and ot her venues t hat
we' ve been to where she's had to walk a lot. So
that is definitely comng up in our future.

To that end, in order to accommpdate a
m nivan and a side or rear-loading ranp for the

scooter, we do require a larger garage. 1In a
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nutshell, that's about it.

| have investigated the ranps, they are
anywhere from5 to 12 feet dependi ng upon the
angl e of departure and bringing it back down.
Certainly a 12-foot ranp is not what | require,
but it would al so be handy to have a ranmp -- W
live in a one-story home, and a ranp that woul d
accommodate the m ni van woul d al so accommodat e t he
front steps on a tenporary basis.

| don't see a need at this tine for
bringing an electric scooter into the house
because the house is fairly small and there are
things that Laura can hold onto as she navi gates
t hrough the house. So truth be known, | don't
think a scooter would fit in there, but we wll
see what happens perhaps with naybe a wheel chair
in the future. That is ny main reason for wanting
a |l arger garage.

MR. PASTRANA: Wien you said that the
contractor kind of drew the outline of the snaller
garage, what -- do you know t he di nensions of that
smal | er garage outline?

MR EIRING Yes, it was approxi mately
22-by-24. They shaved 2 feet off of the w dth.

And that brought us within conpliance of the code.
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But having not seen it, | just wasn't aware how
really small it | ooked.

MR, PASTRANA: 24-by-22 is actually -- |
think it still would be in excess of the code.

MR EIRRNG Well --

MR, PAULSON:. C ose.

MR EIRING -- sonewhere pretty close
| nean, maybe 21-1/2. It was within the ball park
t here.

MR. PASTRANA: Ckay.

MR. PAULSON: Al right. Looking at the
aeri al photographs of the nei ghborhood, it does
appear that -- again, wthout trying to neasure
precisely, it does appear that several of the
nei ghbori ng garages are roughly the size of what
you are proposi ng?

MR EIRRNG Hmhmm Yes. And | have --

MR. PAULSON: In particular the one --
don't know if it's -- which direction is north on
the picture I'mlooking at. South of the -- Your
i nmedi at e nei ghbors to the south --

MR EIRING HmMm hmm

MR. PAULSON: -- looks like it would be
roughly a 24-foot w de garage.

MR. ElI R NG That i s. And | think the
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one actually to the north mght be also. | did
survey ny five nei ghbors whose property woul d
I npact basically ours, the two next door and the
t hree behind, and they had no concerns with the
garage of this size.

MR. PASTRANA: So the bigger garage, if
It were the sane size as your neighbor's, it would
be in violation of the code as a function of the
per cent age of your |ot?

MR EIRING Hm hmm

MR. PAULSON: Yeah. Wether the
nei ghbors are or not --

MR PASTRANA: Right.

MR, PAULSON: -- we can't tell fromthis.

MR. PASTRANA: Right.

MR EIRING | didn't bring that into the
equati on.

MR. PASTRANA: Right. It's not really
rel evant.

MR. PAULSON: And it wouldn't change --
MR, PASTRANA: No.

MR. PAULSON: -- ultimately anything.
Any questions of the applicant?

MR EIRRNG M wfe and | have

determ ned al so, we've been in that house for over
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30 years and raised a famly there. That's where
we're going to stay. That is a house that we have
determ ned that because it is a single-story and
we're confortable in there, that's where we're
going to continue to live for a long tine
hopeful | y.

MR. PAULSON: Gkay. Thank you. Not hing
further fromthe applicant?

MR. EIRING No.

MR PAULSON: No further testinony,
seei ng no one else in the audi ence.

MR EIRING |It's getting |ate, and what
| have here is not really generic.

MR. PAULSON: Okay. Discussion.

The reason for the proposed property --
garage is obvious. There's no real detrinment to
t he nei ghborhood or the public interest. W're
| ooking for a de mnims violation, if you wll,
of the surface area requirenents.

The applicant has sonme unusual
circunstances that are obviously not generally
applicable, so they are -- there are in that sense
sone uni que circunstances, all of which would
benefit the public safety, welfare and justice

supported by our Zoning Code. Do | have a notion?
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MR. BAYER. To clarify, | just want to
make sure for the record that you are submtting
the correct findings for the -- for the m nutes,
or for the record. But when you're tal king about
exceptional circunstances, it says that there nust
be exceptional, extraordinary or unusual
circunstances or conditions applying to the |ot,
parcel or structure. So | want to nmake sure
you're making a record with respect to the |lot,
parcel or structure.

MR. MUJELLER And that's ny concern,

M ke, really.
MR, PAULSON: | know.
MR. MJUELLER: | think it's a -- You know,

| think we're | ooking for sonething here, the
challenge to that. The appellant is a no-brainer,
right. But | think we've got to | ook at what the
physical limtations of the property are that
necessitate this. That's what |'m struggling
Wi th.

You know, | don't know if the |ot size
seenms unusually small, or you guys have any
i nsights into what the issue with the particul ar
lot itself is?

MR. PAULSON: It's a 40-foot lot, so it
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has standard w dt h.

MR. PASTRANA: Ri ght.

MR. MJELLER And sir, what we're
struggling with, as Counsel said, our decision |
t hink has to be based upon sonething we need to
associate wth the --

MR. PASTRANA: The | ot.

MR. MJELLER:. -- the property, the rea
estate, the property itself --

MR. PASTRANA: Not the owner.

MR. MUELLER -- as conpared to the
owner's circunstances. Even though we're all --
There's no question we're synpathetic. And so
that's what we're working to identify here.

MR. PASTRANA: Wiich is why we're trying
to identify it.

MR. MUELLER: That's right.

MR. PAULSON:. Wiich is why | phrased
things the way | did, to totally avoid nmaki ng any
representati ons one way or another on that, but I
got caught.

MR. BAYER: Can you think of anything
unusual about the lot or the structure or the --
or the parcel that would be unique about it as

opposed to any of the other lots that m ght help
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t he issue?

MR EIRING O her than the fact that
the -- the 10 percent, | was inforned that if |
need extra room there could be a slab put next
to the new garage, which would actually take up a
| ot nore than 10 percent of the green space, and
to me makes absolutely no sense what soever. It
doesn't fulfill ny need, and it certainly goes
counter to the 10 percent rule. | wonder exactly
how nmuch of the Village is actually 10 percent
green space.

There was sonething in here regarding
special circunmstances, and | think -- | didn't
check into State Statutes regarding what is, you
know, applicable for soneone who is handi capped.
| would think that a ranp, a handicap ranp in the
front of the house may be in violation of a code
for sonmeone who is putting in a regular stairway,
but that the circunstances would grant a vari ance
or a --

MR. MUELLER: Maybe | could ask Counse
this question. Wen | |ook at the Variance
Ganting Criteria formthat we have, it says you
have to indicate how the hardship is due to the

physical limtations of the property rather than

70
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t he circunstances of the appellant, paren,
econom c, famly, personal and physical. But
then there's brackets that say other than
certified disability.

MR. BAYER: \Were are we | ooki ng?

MR. MJELLER: On the Board of Appeals
Application, Variance Ganting --

MR. ElI R NG This is a certified

disability.
MR. MJELLER -- under No. 1.
MR. PASTRANA: Right.
MR. BAYER. Are we on the first page now?
MR. MUELLER  Yeah.

MR. PASTRANA: So that could be read as
a certified disability being an exception to the
per sonal circunstances not applying.

MR. MJELLER: Right. Do you know where
that -- | guess | don't know where that | anguage
came from

MR. BAYER: Yeah, this is --

M5. LANG 1983 policy.

MR. BAYER. Well, | nean, | can tell you
that there are -- Now, there may be Anericans Wth
Disabilities Act considerations that may trunp

| ocal zoning under federal law. That's entirely
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possible. But the -- And we may get there at sone
point. But the power granted to the Board of
Appeal s is specifically enunerated in --

MR, PAULSON:  Yeah.

MR. BAYER: -- you know, in the ordinance
and under state law. It grants the | ocal
muni ci pality the power to create such a board, and
then review itens under limted jurisdiction,
which this would be it.

Now, there's federal preenption in sone
cases where you could cone in and when you nake
t he application you could say you're preenpted
under federal |aw, you can't nake ne get a -- you
can't make ne apply even for a -- you know, an
application for a building permt, or you can't
deny ny building permt fromthe get-go. That's
a different issue. So this is the first tine
this has cone up. | don't renenber --

MR, PASTRANA: You better stick with the
| ssue.

MR. BAYER: Wat you could do is you
could defer the matter, and | could address -- |
nmean, | could at your request prepare a menorandum
for the next neeting addressing the Anericans Wth

Disabilities and how that affects the jurisdiction

72
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of the Board of Appeals.

MR. PASTRANA: Also, the origin of the
| anguage in the Variance Granting Criteria form
why specifically -- | nean, your suspicions are

like it's federal preenption because of the ADA,

but still, I nmean, |ike why that caveat was nade.
MR. BAYER. Correct. I'mjust trying to
find that on the very -- Is it on the first page

of the application?
M5. LANG Hm hnm
MR. BAYER |I'mtrying to see where that

M5. LANG That's the building permt.

MR BAYER OCh, |I'msorry, |I'm]looking at
the building permt. Excuse ne for a nonent while
| find the correct page here.

MR. MJELLER: Yeah, | think the narrow --
possi bly the narrow question is whether or not the
Board of Appeals can lawfully consider and
lawful |y take into account a certified disability
i n determ ning whether or not there's a hardship
t hat woul d support the granting of a variance.

MR, PAULSON: Absent a particul ar uni que,
unusual circunstance related to the property

I tsel f.
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MR. PASTRANA: Ri ght.

MR. PAULSON:. What we're trying to do is
find sonmething related to the property that wll
| et us --

MR EIRING (Qbviously it's too small
for the garage we intend to put up

MR, PASTRANA: Yeah, that would still be
a circunstance relating to the owner.

MR. PAULSON: Yeah, that's personal.

MR. BAYER. Well, the other question is,
| don't -- And | apologize, | should have seen
this comng, but when it says certified
disability, that is a termof art that is not
otherw se defined in the application. And | don't
see -- | don't believe that's a termof art that's
defined in the Village Code either. [|'mgoing to
do a quick search within the code.

MR. PASTRANA: Ri ght.

MR. PAULSON: But it may be under state
law. And we clearly have under state |law a
certified disability.

MR. BAYER: Certainly.

MR, PAULSON: So - -

MR. BAYER: |s there docunentation to

that effect in the application? | don't --
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MR. PAULSON: We have the sworn testinony
of the applicant.
MR MJELLER Well, it says certified

disability per her doctor in the application

itsel f.

MR. PAULSON: |I'mnot terribly worried
about that.

MR, PASTRANA: | think we're better off

waiting for himto research the issue personally.
Although | really wish that weren't the case,
but --

MR. BAYER: Well, you could adjourn the
matter.

MR MUELLER Well, | think -- we
don't have the -- W can't order you to research
it, can we? | think we just have to --

MR. BAYER: You can neke a request.

MR. MJELLER: -- defer the matter and --

MR. BAYER. | nean, | can -- Certainly
staff can direct ne to prepare a nenorandum t hat
woul d address it specifically. |'mjust searching
the Village Code now, seeing if we have that term
| don't believe we do, but -- I"'mjust going to
see if it pops up anywhere in the existing code.

MR. ElI R NG M. Giffiths has inforned
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me -- Now, | amw thout a garage, and | have a car
that's full of things that were in the garage, and
| have a house that's full of things that were in

t he garage.

MR. PAULSON: And you' ve got weat her
constraints | understand.

MR EIRING Yes. He said generally
about the end of COctober is it for starting. So |
would like to get himstarted with the foundation
as soon as possible.

MR. PAULSON: Let's see.

MR. PASTRANA: To be the | ast one, huh?

MR EIRING | m ssed the Septenber
nmeeting by one day to put in an application for
it.

MR. BAYER:. That's not com ng up as a
termof art in the State Statutes either. It's
I nt eresting.

MR, PAULSON: | think it's clear what
was i nt ended.

MR. PASTRANA: 1'Ill Google sonething. |
mean, | wonder if there's case authorities
saying -- you know, applying the ADA to this sort
of a case, but | don't know.

MR. PAULSON: Well, just -- |I'mjust
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readi ng the provisions of the Statute -- of the
Vill age Code, which says that we have the power
to grant appeals of variances so as not to be
contrary to public interest where, owing to
special conditions, unspecified, the literal
enforcenent result in practical difficulty or
unnecessary hardship, so that the spirit and

pur pose of this chapter shall be observed and the
public safety, welfare and justice secured.

| think if that were the standard, we'd
have no probl em here.

MR. PASTRANA: No.

MR. PAULSON:. We have speci al
circunstances, public interest. The question is
can we nmake a finding of exceptional circunstances
applying to the lot, parcel or structure that do
not apply generally or to other properties in the
sanme district, and that the granting of the
variance woul d not be so general recurrent as to
suggest that this chapter shoul d be changed.

And | think the argunment here woul d be
that the issue is the structure of the garage
itself. We have special circunstances related to
this particul ar garage proposal. W're not

talking the lot, we're not tal king the parcel,
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we're talking to the proposed structure, which
woul d be unique -- it's a unique proposal for a
structure to neet admttedly a specific need, a
need to the -- admttedly to the applicant as
opposed to a need related to the specific
property.

But the exceptional circunstances
| anguage i s anbi guous as to whet her those speci al
structural circunstances nust be caused because of
the property or the lot. Gven that anbiguity,
gi ven the need, given the potential for a
requirenent to -- potential of a federal
requi renent --

MR. PASTRANA: R ght.

MR, PAULSON: -- for handi capped
accessibility, and given the unique nature of the
structural requirenents in this particul ar case,
I think we can nake a finding of exceptional
ci rcunst ances which would justify a de mnims
exception or violation, if you will, violation
being far too strong a word in the current
circunstances, a de mnims exception, and the
vari ance could be granted under those
ci rcunst ances.

So on that basis | amwlling to nove to
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grant this variance.

PASTRANA: |'Il | second.

PAULSON:  Any further discussion?
LANG Vot e?

PAULSON: Vot e.

LANG Ckay. Carlos Pastrana.
PASTRANA:  Yes.

LANG Lance Muel |l er.

MJELLER: No on this one.

53 H 2D D H DD

LANG Al right. And M chael
Paul son.

MR, PAULSON: Yes.

M5. LANG Yes. GCkay. I'mgoing to get
to the bottom of that source.

MR. PAULSON: So your variance has been
gr ant ed.

MR. EIRING Thank you very much, | adies
and gentlenen. MW wife and | appreciate it.

MR, PAULSON: And before we take a notion
to adjourn, I'd like to apologize to the court
reporter for talking over -- for all of us talking
over each other. Thank you for bearing with us.

MR. MUELLER: Mbtion to adjourn.

MR, PASTRANA: Second.

MR. PAULSON: All in favor, say aye.



© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N N N N N T o i e e
o A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ w N -+ O

(Vote taken.)
MR. PAULSON: Hearing is closed at

(Hearing adjourned at 7:19 p.m)

* % * % *

7:19.
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STATE OF WISCONSIN )
) SS.
WAUKESHA COUNTY )

I, Diane C. Milanowski, a Notary Public in
and for the State of Wisconsin, do hereby certify that the
above Village of Shorewood Board of Appeals was taken before
me, on October 11, 2016, at the Shorewood Village Hall, 3930
North Murray Avenue, Shorewood, Wisconsin, commencing at
5:34 p.m.

That it was taken in machine shorthand by
myself, and that the foregoing proceedings constitute a true
and correct transcription of my original machine shorthand
notes taken at said hearing.

I certify that I am not a relative or
employee or counsel to any of the parties hereto, nor a

relative or employee of their counsel, and have no

interest in the outcome or events of said action.

Dated this 29th day of October, 2016.

-

Ehx:)kiqu;(f?;jhgkﬁxmipuﬁﬁg;éLh

NOTARY PUBLIC - STATE OF WISCONSIN

My commission expires January 6, 2018.
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